
 
 

December 12, 2018 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6:00 P.M. Special Meeting 

201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 MAYOR ELECT Paul McNamara 

 DEPUTY MAYOR John Masson 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  Michael Morasco 

 COUNCIL MEMBER ELECT Consuelo Martinez 

 CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 

 INTERIM CITY CLERK Eva Heter 

 CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



3 
 

 

December 12, 2018 
6:00 P.M. Special Meeting 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
FLAG SALUTE:  Police and Fire Color Guard 

 

NATIONAL ANTHEM: Joe Stanford, Escondido Center Chorale 
 

INVOCATION:  Megan Decker 
 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 

may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 

Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. CERTIFICATION OF 2018 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION RESULTS - 

Request the City Council approve certifying the November 6, 2018, City of Escondido General Municipal 

Election and declare the results. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Eva Heter) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-187 

  



4 
 

COMMENTS – OUTGOING OFFICIALS 

2. PRESENTATION OF PLAQUES - 

 Jeffrey Epp, City Manager 

3. COMMENTS FROM OUTGOING OFFICIALS – 

 

 Ed Gallo, Councilmember – District One 

 Sam Abed, Mayor 

 

INSTALLATION CEREMONIES 

4. ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICE: The Honorable Judge Sim von Kalinowski 

  

 Consuelo Martinez, Councilmember – District One 

 John Masson, Councilmember – District Two 

 Paul McNamara, Mayor 

5. COMMENTS FROM NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS - 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

6. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR - 

Staff Recommendation: None 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 

are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  
 

ADJOURNMENT/RECEPTION 

 

 
*Please note there will be no live streaming of this meeting. 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

December 19 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting Mitchell Room 

December 26 - - No Meeting - 

January 2 - - No Meeting - 

January 9 - - No Meeting - 



5 
 

TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 

are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 

• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  

• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 

or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  

They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 

www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 

of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 1   December 12, 2018   File No. 0650-40 

 

SUBJECT:  Certification of November 2018 General Municipal Election Results 
 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2018-187 certifying the November 6, 2018, 
City of Escondido General Municipal Election and declaring the results. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

Funds for election expenses in the amount of $150,000 were approved in the Fiscal Year 2018-19 
General Fund budget.  Final costs should be available from the Registrar of Voters within the next 60-
90 days. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On June 13, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-90 calling for a General Municipal 
Election to be held on November 6, 2018, to elect one (1) Mayor at-large, with a four-year term; one 
(1) City Council Member – District One, with a four-year term; and one (1) City Council Member – 
District Two, with a four-year term. The City Council also adopted Resolution No. 2018-91 requesting 
the San Diego County Board of Supervisors/Registrar of Voters to consolidate Escondido’s Municipal 
Election with the Statewide General Election. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
In accordance with the California Elections Code, certification of the canvass of the returns from the 
General Municipal Election held on November 6, 2018, is to be presented to the City Council for 
action.  The official certification from the Registrar of Voters is attached to Resolution No. 2018-187 
as Exhibit “A.” 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Eva Heter, Interim City Clerk 

12/06/2018 5:06 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2018-187 
2. Resolution No. 2018-187 - Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-187 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
RECITING THE FACT OF THE GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 
6, 2018, DECLARING THE RESULTS AND 
SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS REQUIRED BY 
LAW 
 

 WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the City of 

Escondido, on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, as required by law; and 

 WHEREAS, a notice of the election was given in time, form and manner as 

provided by law; that voting precincts were properly established; that candidates were 

nominated to fill the vacancies as provided by law; that election officers were appointed 

and that in all respects the election was held and conducted and the votes were cast, 

received and canvassed and the returns made and declared in time, form and manner 

as required by the provisions of the Elections Code of the State of California for the 

holding of elections in general law cities; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2018-90 was adopted June 13, 2018, calling for and 

giving notice of a General Municipal Election to be held on Tuesday, November 6, 

2018; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2018-91 was adopted June 13, 2018, requesting the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of San Diego and the Registrar of Voters to 

consolidate a General Municipal Election to be held on November 6, 2018, with the 

Statewide General Election to be held on the same date; and  

 WHEREAS, in accordance with California Elections Code Section 15400, the 

Official Canvass of the Returns from the General Election held on November 6, 2018, is 



   

prepared by the San Diego County Registrar of Voters and the results are declared by 

the City Council as to who was elected.  The official certification from the San Diego 

County Registrar of Voters is attached as Exhibit “A” and is incorporated by this 

reference. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

 SECTION 1.  That there were 74 precincts established for the purpose of 

holding the General Municipal Election in the City of Escondido as established for the 

holding of state and county elections; 13 precincts were established in City Council 

District One; and 26 precincts were established in City Council District Two. 

 That the whole number of ballots cast in the City of Escondido for Mayor was 

41,076; that the whole number of ballots cast in District One for Council Member was 

5,676; that the whole number of ballots cast in District Two for Council Member was 

11,767. 

 SECTION 2.  That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in 

the City of Escondido for Mayor are as follows: 

  Sam Abed 

  Paul McNamara 

  Randy L. Eldred (Write-In Candidate) 

 That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in District One for 

Member of the City Council to represent District One are as follows: 

  Consuelo Martinez 

  Ed Gallo 



   

 That the names of persons voted for at the election by voters in District Two for 

Member of the City Council to represent District Two are as follows: 

  Nicole A. Downey 

  Vanessa Valenzuela 

  John Masson 

 SECTION 3. That the number of votes given at each precinct and the number 

of votes given in the City to each of the persons above named for the respective offices 

for which the persons were candidates and for and against the measures were as listed 

in Exhibit “A” attached. 

 SECTION 4.   The City Council does declare and determine that Paul 

McNamara was elected at-large as Mayor for the full term of four years; Consuelo 

Martinez was elected by voters in District One as Member of the City Council – District 

One for the full term of four years; and John Masson was re-elected by voters in District 

Two as Member of the City Council – District Two for the full term of four years. 

 SECTION 5.   That the City Clerk shall enter on the records of the City Council 

for the City of Escondido a statement of the results of said election, showing: 

a. The whole number of votes cast in the City;  

b. The names of the persons voted for; 

c. For what office each person was voted for; 

d. The number of votes given at each precinct to each person; and 

e. The total number of votes given to each person. 

SECTION 6.   That the City Clerk shall immediately make and deliver to each of 

such persons so elected a Certificate of Election signed by the City Clerk and duly 



   

authenticated; and that the City Clerk shall cause to be administered to each person 

elected, the Oath of Office prescribed in the State Constitution of the State of California, 

and shall have them subscribe to it and file the same in the office of the City Clerk.  

Each and all of the persons so elected shall then be inducted into the respective office 

to which they have been elected. 

 SECTION 7.   That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of 

the resolution; shall enter the same in the book of original resolutions of said City. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 1 of 28



Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 2 of 28



Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 3 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:1 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

GOVERNOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1157878
GAVIN NEWSOM DEM 658346 56.86%
JOHN H. COX REP 499532 43.14%

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 912594
ELENI KOUNALAKIS DEM 570795 62.55%
ED HERNANDEZ DEM 341799 37.45%

SECRETARY OF STATE
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1137586
ALEX PADILLA DEM 676273 59.45%
MARK P. MEUSER REP 461313 40.55%

CONTROLLER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1131688
BETTY T. YEE DEM 678633 59.97%
KONSTANTINOS RODITIS REP 453055 40.03%

TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1123452
FIONA MA DEM 661376 58.87%
GREG CONLON REP 462076 41.13%

ATTORNEY GENERAL
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1130635
XAVIER BECERRA DEM 662897 58.63%
STEVEN C BAILEY REP 467738 41.37%

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1069185
RICARDO LARA DEM 541730 50.67%
STEVE POIZNER 527455 49.33%

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
4TH DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 1088389
MIKE SCHAEFER DEM 602111 55.32%
JOEL  ANDERSON REP 486278 44.68%

UNITED STATES SENATOR
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 995192
DIANNE FEINSTEIN DEM 526628 52.92%
KEVIN DE LEON DEM 468564 47.08%

US REPRESENTATIVE 49TH DIST     
  (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 442
Precincts Reporting 442 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 225199/307676 73.2  %
Total Votes 219581
MIKE LEVIN DEM 131329 59.81%
DIANE L. HARKEY REP 88252 40.19%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 4 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:2 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

US REPRESENTATIVE 50TH DIST     
  (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 490
Precincts Reporting 490 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 240487/350985 68.5  %
Total Votes 231557
DUNCAN HUNTER REP 118712 51.27%
AMMAR CAMPA-NAJJAR DEM 112845 48.73%

US REPRESENTATIVE 51ST DIST      
 (SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 261
Precincts Reporting 261 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 123663/248681 49.7  %
Total Votes 120491
JUAN  VARGAS DEM 87415 72.55%
JUAN M. HIDALGO JR REP 33076 27.45%

US REPRESENTATIVE 52ND DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 457
Precincts Reporting 457 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 307204/432600 71.0  %
Total Votes 296007
SCOTT  PETERS DEM 188992 63.85%
OMAR QUDRAT REP 107015 36.15%

US REPRESENTATIVE 53RD DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 486
Precincts Reporting 486 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 277371/427358 64.9  %
Total Votes 268794
SUSAN A. DAVIS DEM 185667 69.07%
MORGAN  MURTAUGH REP 83127 30.93%

STATE SENATE 36TH DIST                 
(SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 364
Precincts Reporting 364 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 193157/266747 72.4  %
Total Votes 185611
MARGGIE CASTELLANO DEM 99982 53.87%
PATRICIA PAT BATES REP 85629 46.13%

STATE SENATE 38TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 729
Precincts Reporting 729 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 368130/536189 68.7  %
Total Votes 353437
BRIAN W. JONES REP 187345 53.01%
JEFF  GRIFFITH DEM 166092 46.99%

STATE SENATE 40TH DIST                 
(SAN DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 413
Precincts Reporting 413 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 204950/385236 53.2  %
Total Votes 198869
BEN HUESO DEM 131627 66.19%
LUIS R. VARGAS REP 67242 33.81%

STATE ASSEMBLY 71ST DIST (SAN 
DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 367
Precincts Reporting 367 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 158355/240438 65.9  %
Total Votes 151385
RANDY  VOEPEL REP 91335 60.33%
JAMES  ELIA DEM 60050 39.67%

STATE ASSEMBLY 75TH DIST (SAN 
DIEGO PORTION ONLY) Total

Number of Precincts 272
Precincts Reporting 272 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 132381/190746 69.4  %
Total Votes 126506
MARIE WALDRON REP 69493 54.93%
ALAN  GERACI DEM 57013 45.07%

STATE ASSEMBLY 76TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 343
Precincts Reporting 343 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 189001/261133 72.4  %
Total Votes 146196
TASHA  BOERNER H. DEM 79769 54.56%
ELIZABETH WARREN DEM 66427 45.44%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 5 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:3 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

STATE ASSEMBLY 77TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 339
Precincts Reporting 339 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 208762/290453 71.9  %
Total Votes 199153
BRIAN  MAIENSCHEIN REP 99880 50.15%
SUNDAY GOVER DEM 99273 49.85%

STATE ASSEMBLY 78TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 304
Precincts Reporting 304 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 207841/292235 71.1  %
Total Votes 197815
TODD  GLORIA DEM 140598 71.08%
MAGGIE J. CAMPBELL REP 57217 28.92%

STATE ASSEMBLY 79TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 287
Precincts Reporting 287 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 162845/268174 60.7  %
Total Votes 155081
SHIRLEY N. WEBER DEM 103533 66.76%
JOHN  MOORE REP 51548 33.24%

STATE ASSEMBLY 80TH DIST
Total

Number of Precincts 224
Precincts Reporting 224 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 114739/224121 51.2  %
Total Votes 110184
LORENA  GONZALEZ DEM 82621 74.98%
LINCOLN  PICKARD REP 27563 25.02%

CA SUP CT ASSOC JUST CORRIGAN
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 831341
YES 572351 68.85%
NO 258990 31.15%

CA SUP CT ASSOC JUST       
KRUGER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 821076
YES 603531 73.50%
NO 217545 26.50%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
IRION Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 804460
YES 606581 75.40%
NO 197879 24.60%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
HALLER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 800299
YES 590223 73.75%
NO 210076 26.25%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
HUFFMAN Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 803255
YES 542889 67.59%
NO 260366 32.41%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
BENKE Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 807542
YES 594403 73.61%
NO 213139 26.39%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 6 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:4 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
AARON Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 804434
YES 582177 72.37%
NO 222257 27.63%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
DATO Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 795705
YES 535184 67.26%
NO 260521 32.74%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 1      
GUERRERO Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 789892
YES 592026 74.95%
NO 197866 25.05%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
MILLER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 792121
YES 502632 63.45%
NO 289489 36.55%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
FIELDS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 792283
YES 542018 68.41%
NO 250265 31.59%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
MCKINSTER Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 778436
YES 521754 67.03%
NO 256682 32.97%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 2      
SLOUGH Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 782803
YES 549802 70.24%
NO 233001 29.76%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
THOMPSON Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 774826
YES 519202 67.01%
NO 255624 32.99%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
IKOLA Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 774225
YES 544138 70.28%
NO 230087 29.72%

CA APP CT ASSOC JUST DIV 3      
GOETHALS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 772048
YES 512064 66.33%
NO 259984 33.67%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 7 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:5 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

SUPERIOR COURT OFFICE NO. 37
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 899162
MATT BROWER 550044 61.17%
GARY  KREEP 349118 38.83%

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC 
INSTRUCTION Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1173924/1767300 66.4  %
Total Votes 942297
MARSHALL TUCK 513201 54.46%
TONY K. THURMOND 425096 45.11%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-1 Total

Number of Precincts 71
Precincts Reporting 71 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 39256/57756 68.0  %
Total Votes 33246
LINDA  CARTWRIGHT 22226 66.85%
JONATHAN JOHN OLSEN 10932 32.88%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-2 Total

Number of Precincts 70
Precincts Reporting 70 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 40321/57987 69.5  %
Total Votes 31084
DEBBIE JUSTESON 21767 70.03%
BILL EXETER 9208 29.62%

GROSSMONT-CUYAMACA COMM 
COLLEGE TA-5 Total

Number of Precincts 70
Precincts Reporting 70 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29678/51328 57.8  %
Total Votes 23942
BRAD MONROE 14403 60.16%
TERESA A. ROSIAK 9411 39.31%

MIRACOSTA COMM COLLEGE TA-2
Total

Number of Precincts 80
Precincts Reporting 80 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 31862/39969 79.7  %
Total Votes 22036
RICK CASSAR 16534 75.03%
HAROLD FAIRMAN IV 5431 24.65%

MIRACOSTA COMM COLLEGE TA-7
Total

Number of Precincts 32
Precincts Reporting 32 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18836/28432 66.2  %
Total Votes 15290
WILLIAM  FISCHER 8829 57.74%
STEVE HASTY 6387 41.77%

PALOMAR COMM COLLEGE
Total

Number of Precincts 577
Precincts Reporting 577 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 296857/421458 70.4  %
Total Votes 377161
NORMA  MIYAMOTO 91100 24.15%
MARK R. EVILSIZER 86555 22.95%
ROSE MARIE DISHMAN 79773 21.15%
LEE  DULGEROFF 70618 18.72%
AIMEE R. KEITH 48200 12.78%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT A Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 289885
MARIA NIETO SENOUR 176691 60.95%
DIANE HICKMAN 112211 38.71%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT C Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 283960
CRAIG MILGRIM 191297 67.37%
LOREN SETH CASUTO 91500 32.22%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 8 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:6 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

SAN DIEGO COMM COLLEGE 
DISTRICT E Total

Number of Precincts 613
Precincts Reporting 613 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383923/586316 65.5  %
Total Votes 283621
SEAN ELO 140895 49.68%
DAVID  ALVAREZ 137638 48.53%

SOUTHWESTERN COMM COLLEGE 
DIST SEAT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 257
Precincts Reporting 257 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 142663/255739 55.8  %
Total Votes 122401
LETICIA Y. CAZARES 56939 46.52%
NICOLE  JONES 39993 32.67%
TAMARA  RODRIGUEZ 24993 20.42%

BORREGO SPRINGS UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1331/1754 75.9  %
Total Votes 1744
JUDY K. COYLE 708 40.60%
VALEEN SZABO 553 31.71%
CURT YAWS 465 26.66%

CARLSBAD UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6471/8648 74.8  %
Total Votes 5044
VERONICA C. WILLIAMS 2657 52.68%
MELANIE BURKHOLDER 2367 46.93%

CORONADO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8080/10806 74.8  %
Total Votes 14154
LEE PONTES 4472 31.60%
HELEN ANDERSON-CRUZ 4080 28.83%
ESTHER RUTH VALDÉS 4073 28.78%
KYLE R. TUPAS 1445 10.21%

MOUNTAIN EMPIRE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4559/7079 64.4  %
Total Votes 3415
BERYL BUCHANAN 2034 59.56%
ROB ROMERO 1358 39.77%

MOUNTAIN EMPIRE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4559/7079 64.4  %
Total Votes 3137
GENE PATTEN 1848 58.91%
STEPHEN M. GREIFZU 1266 40.36%

OCEANSIDE UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6925/11165 62.0  %
Total Votes 5826
ERIC JOYCE 2407 41.31%
ESTEBAN BALDERAS 1674 28.73%
DANIEL A. IMAN 1135 19.48%
OSCAR OSCARIN ORTEGA 591 10.14%

OCEANSIDE UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5006/7841 63.8  %
Total Votes 3993
STACY BEGIN 2596 65.01%
ANN  CORWIN 1377 34.49%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA B Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 21516/27340 78.7  %
Total Votes 17202
GINGER COUVRETTE 7624 44.32%
KEVIN JUZA 5978 34.75%
KIM GARNIER 3576 20.79%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 9 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:7 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA C Total

Number of Precincts 24
Precincts Reporting 24 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 16958/23005 73.7  %
Total Votes 12999
T.J. ZANE 6335 48.73%
TERESA TERRY NORWOOD 4467 34.36%
CHARLES SELLERS 2154 16.57%

POWAY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA D Total

Number of Precincts 23
Precincts Reporting 23 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 15623/22442 69.6  %
Total Votes 12056
M. O'CONNOR-RATCLIFF 7866 65.25%
STAN RODKIN 4143 34.36%

RAMONA UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 15568/22100 70.4  %
Total Votes 27396
RODGER  DOHM 7552 27.57%
BOB STOODY 7472 27.27%
KIM LASLEY 6871 25.08%
EDWARD L. ANDERSON 5332 19.46%

SAN DIEGO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT B Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383674/585998 65.5  %
Total Votes 298005
KEVIN RICHARD BEISER 216657 72.70%
TOM KELIINOI 80388 26.98%

SAN DIEGO UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT C Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383674/585998 65.5  %
Total Votes 294290
MICHAEL G. MCQUARY 177300 60.25%
MARCIA NORDSTROM 116022 39.42%

SAN MARCOS UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DIST TRUSTEE AREA E Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 9426/13462 70.0  %
Total Votes 7167
STACY CARLSON 5306 74.03%
CHRISTINA  LINDEN 1839 25.66%

VALLEY CENTER-PAUMA UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 11175/15538 71.9  %
Total Votes 20297
JULIE A. STROH 4617 22.75%
WENDY HEREDIA 4588 22.60%
CRAIG ADAMS 4379 21.57%
JERRY C. FENTON 4274 21.06%
JEANA BOULOS 2360 11.63%

VALLEY CENTER-PAUMA UNIFIED 
SCH DIST (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 11175/15538 71.9  %
Total Votes 8567
MIKE ADAMS 5344 62.38%
GINA ROBERTS 3186 37.19%

VISTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 27
Precincts Reporting 27 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10553/15658 67.4  %
Total Votes 8252
DEBBIE MORTON 4786 58.00%
CAROL W. HERRERA 3436 41.64%

WARNER UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 975/1327 73.5  %
Total Votes 1615
JEANNEAN ROMBAL 474 29.35%
PJ STONEBURNER 398 24.64%
TERRY L COX 374 23.16%
MELODY  SEES 347 21.49%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 10 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:8 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

FALLBROOK UNION HIGH SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 16860/24254 69.5  %
Total Votes 31781
DIANE SUMMERS 6751 21.24%
LITA TABISH 5924 18.64%
ELANA STERLING 5228 16.45%
D.J. CAMPE 4003 12.60%
JAMES  O'DONNELL 3708 11.67%
RICHARD L. GOODLAKE 3579 11.26%
SHERRY Z. LUDWIG 2510 7.90%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18668/23481 79.5  %
Total Votes 14809
MAUREEN "MO" MUIR 7486 50.55%
AMY FLICKER 7291 49.23%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 47
Precincts Reporting 47 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18804/23638 79.5  %
Total Votes 14005
MELISSE C. MOSSY 7389 52.76%
RHEA A. STEWART 6579 46.98%

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH 
SCHOOL DIST TA NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 16482/22648 72.8  %
Total Votes 12807
KRISTIN GIBSON 5204 40.63%
CHERYL JAMES-WARD 4899 38.25%
LEA WOLF 2660 20.77%

GROSSMONT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DIST TA NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 67
Precincts Reporting 67 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 20595/37112 55.5  %
Total Votes 16204
GARY  WOODS 10246 63.23%
PEGGY "LIZ" WEAVER 5909 36.47%

ALPINE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8901/12335 72.2  %
Total Votes 16415
AL GUERRA 4690 28.57%
GLENN DICKIE 4278 26.06%
ERIC WRAY 4212 25.66%
LOUIS RUSSO 3151 19.20%

BONSALL UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8421/11208 75.1  %
Total Votes 14850
LOU RIDDLE 2793 18.81%
ROGER MERCHAT 2651 17.85%
MICHAEL GADDIS 2621 17.65%
ERIC ORTEGA 2342 15.77%
BRIAN C. OLSON 2341 15.76%
TIMOTHY J. COEN 2029 13.66%

BONSALL UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT  (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8421/11208 75.1  %
Total Votes 6087
LARISSA  ANDERSON 3048 50.07%
SYLVIA B TUCKER 3009 49.43%

CAJON VALLEY  UNION SCHOOL 
DIST TRUSTEE AREA NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 30
Precincts Reporting 30 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8486/15253 55.6  %
Total Votes 6724
JILL D. BARTO 4584 68.17%
ANDREW ALEGRIA 2109 31.37%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 11 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54

Page:9 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CHULA VISTA ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL DIST SEAT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94129/163480 57.6  %
Total Votes 81660
LESLIE RAY BUNKER 34211 41.89%
FAMELA RAMOS 30034 36.78%
AARON MORENO 17186 21.05%

CHULA VISTA ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL DIST SEAT NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94129/163480 57.6  %
Total Votes 78806
EDUARDO REYES 46029 58.41%
TANIA A. SOLIS 16463 20.89%
KATE BISHOP 16017 20.32%

DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 21339/28373 75.2  %
Total Votes 37076
K.  FITZPATRICK 7040 18.99%
SCOTT WOODEN 7038 18.98%
DOUG RAFNER 6564 17.70%
LIBBY HELLMANN 6375 17.19%
GEE WAH MOK 6024 16.25%
CHRIS TYLER 3921 10.58%

ENCINITAS UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 73
Precincts Reporting 73 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 40281/50632 79.6  %
Total Votes 73648
MARLA  STRICH 18384 24.96%
EMILY ANDRADE 17746 24.10%
GREGG M SONKEN 15359 20.85%
CHRISTIAN S ADAMS 11373 15.44%
AMY C. GLANCY 10577 14.36%

ESCONDIDO UNION SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10830/16557 65.4  %
Total Votes 8513
GEORGINE M. TOMASI 4337 50.95%
ZESTY  HARPER 4150 48.75%

ESCONDIDO UNION SCHOOL DIST 
TRUSTEE AREA NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 20
Precincts Reporting 20 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 11747/17581 66.8  %
Total Votes 8918
GARY M. ALTENBURG 5103 57.22%
FRANK HUSTON 3789 42.49%

FALLBROOK UNION ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 28
Precincts Reporting 28 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 16054/23080 69.6  %
Total Votes 28527
SUSAN  LIEBES 6342 22.23%
PATTY DE JONG 5673 19.89%
CARON  LIEBER 5037 17.66%
EREN MELENDEZ 4433 15.54%
PATRICK RUSNELL 4280 15.00%
DARRYL E. BUNTIN 2697 9.45%

LA MESA-SPRING VALLEY SCHOOL
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 86
Precincts Reporting 86 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 50852/78072 65.1  %
Total Votes 98987
REBECCA  MCRAE 21640 21.86%
CHARDÁ FONTENOT 16148 16.31%
MEGAN EPPERSON 14520 14.67%
BRIANNA GARZA 14274 14.42%
STEVE BABBITT 13877 14.02%
JERRY LECKO 12734 12.86%
MATTHEW A. SABLOVE 5572 5.63%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 12 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:10 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

LEMON GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 11398/19568 58.2  %
Total Votes 21094
TIMOTHY  SHAW 4448 21.09%
KATIE DEXTER 4181 19.82%
LARRY LOSCHEN 3560 16.88%
YAJAIRA PRECIADO 3509 16.64%
ANGELES G. NELSON 2924 13.86%
KATHERINE NUNCIO 2391 11.33%

NATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 27
Precincts Reporting 27 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 12693/24582 51.6  %
Total Votes 26164
MARIA CASTANEDA 5315 20.31%
MARIA DALLA 4552 17.40%
ALMA SARMIENTO 4505 17.22%
GONZALO J. QUINTERO 4276 16.34%
RANDI MARIE CASTLE 2811 10.74%
THELMA SANCHEZ 2597 9.93%
JILL ANN MILLIGAN 2041 7.80%

RANCHO SANTA FE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 16
Precincts Reporting 16 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 3568/4504 79.2  %
Total Votes 4708
KALI KIM 1429 30.35%
JEE MANGHANI 1209 25.68%
BEN B. BROWN 1104 23.45%
DAN A. DUFRESNE 501 10.64%
GLEN GRIFFIN 460 9.77%

SAN PASQUAL UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 1586/2080 76.3  %
Total Votes 2596
MATTHEW ZDUNICH 594 22.88%
DARA P CZERWONKA 569 21.92%
JOHN MERZ 562 21.65%
DAVID R. HERSEY 545 20.99%
JESSICA ADAMS 323 12.44%

SAN YSIDRO SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 22
Precincts Reporting 22 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 7812/17472 44.7  %
Total Votes 12561
HUMBERTO GURMILAN JR 3728 29.68%
IRENE LOPEZ 3238 25.78%
RODOLFO "RUDY" LOPEZ 2663 21.20%
OLGA ESPINOZA 1803 14.35%
MARCOS DIAZ 1050 8.36%

SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Total

Number of Precincts 46
Precincts Reporting 46 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 20210/25927 77.9  %
Total Votes 32607
VICKI  KING 10062 30.86%
DEBRA H. SCHADE 9732 29.85%
GAYLIN ALLBAUGH 7904 24.24%
JULIE WESTCOT O'DELL 4815 14.77%

SOUTH BAY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 19965/39434 50.6  %
Total Votes 38608
LOUIS BARRIOS 7380 19.12%
MARY SUSAN DOYLE 6882 17.83%
MARCO O.R. AMARAL 6668 17.27%
DAVID C. LOPEZ 5822 15.08%
ELVIA AGUILAR 5338 13.83%
MELANIE  ELLSWORTH 3608 9.35%
BETH GILLEN 2760 7.15%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 390
Precincts Reporting 390 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 248429/376979 65.9  %
Total Votes 211930
NATHAN FLETCHER 142785 67.37%
BONNIE  DUMANIS 69145 32.63%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 13 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:11 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DISTRICT NO. 5 Total

Number of Precincts 511
Precincts Reporting 511 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 247258/346312 71.4  %
Total Votes 199313
JIM DESMOND 112267 56.33%
MICHELLE  GOMEZ 87046 43.67%

CITY OF CARLSBAD MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 53337
MATT HALL 29558 55.42%
CORI SCHUMACHER 23649 44.34%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 18
Precincts Reporting 18 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12468/16484 75.6  %
Total Votes 10785
BARBARA HAMILTON 4130 38.29%
TRACY CARMICHAEL 3893 36.10%
LINDA BREEN 1576 14.61%
DAVID MCGEE 1162 10.77%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 15070/19466 77.4  %
Total Votes 12901
PRIYA BHAT-PATEL 6572 50.94%
CORRINE BUSTA 6302 48.85%

CITY OF CARLSBAD CITY CLERK
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 39329
BARBARA ENGLESON 38882 98.86%

CITY OF CARLSBAD TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 94
Precincts Reporting 94 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 57678/73890 78.1  %
Total Votes 38948
CRAIG  LINDHOLM 38473 98.78%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80530/140099 57.5  %
Total Votes 75237
MARY CASILLAS SALAS 54062 71.86%
HECTOR RAUL GASTELUM 21175 28.14%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25178/38845 64.8  %
Total Votes 23123
JOHN McCANN 11945 51.66%
MARK  BARTLETT 11178 48.34%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18566/32794 56.6  %
Total Votes 16898
JILL M. GALVEZ 8871 52.50%
STEVE STENBERG 8027 47.50%

CITY OF CHULA VISTA CITY 
ATTORNEY Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80530/140099 57.5  %
Total Votes 71834
GLEN GOOGINS 43333 60.32%
ANDREW DEDDEH 28501 39.68%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 14 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:12 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF CORONADO CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 8080/10806 74.8  %
Total Votes 13166
BILL SANDKE 3492 26.52%
MARVIN HEINZE 3078 23.38%
MARY D. SIKES 2724 20.69%
PETER J. JENSEN 1924 14.61%
DERIK MUNDT 1558 11.83%

CITY OF DEL MAR CITY COUNCIL
Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 2722/3273 83.2  %
Total Votes 4266
TERRY GAASTERLAND 1453 34.06%
DWIGHT WORDEN 1179 27.64%
BRIAN FLETCHER 1054 24.71%
DANIEL J. QUIRK 568 13.31%

CITY OF EL CAJON MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 86
Precincts Reporting 86 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 26124/44483 58.7  %
Total Votes 23126
BILL WELLS 14803 64.01%
JOEL A. SCALZITTI 6295 27.22%
ROBERT M. WEAVER JR. 1917 8.29%

CITY OF EL CAJON CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 32
Precincts Reporting 32 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 9445/14371 65.7  %
Total Votes 8150
GARY KENDRICK 6826 83.75%
BEN KALASHO 1281 15.72%

CITY OF ENCINITAS MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33715/42394 79.5  %
Total Votes 30016
CATHERINE BLAKESPEAR 24851 82.79%
JOHN PAUL ELLIOTT 4845 16.14%

CITY OF ENCINITAS CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 16
Precincts Reporting 16 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8851/11094 79.8  %
Total Votes 7822
JODY HUBBARD 4184 53.49%
MARK MUIR 3617 46.24%

CITY OF ENCINITAS CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8886/10991 80.8  %
Total Votes 7763
JOE MOSCA 3959 51.00%
TONY BRANDENBURG 3774 48.62%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 74
Precincts Reporting 74 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 44344/67979 65.2  %
Total Votes 41076
PAUL "MAC" MCNAMARA 21183 51.57%
SAM ABED 19639 47.81%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6315/11219 56.3  %
Total Votes 5676
CONSUELO MARTINEZ 3692 65.05%
ED GALLO 1972 34.74%

CITY OF ESCONDIDO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 14326/21185 67.6  %
Total Votes 11767
JOHN MASSON 5899 50.13%
VANESSA VALENZUELA 4529 38.49%
NICOLE A. DOWNEY 1302 11.06%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 15 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:13 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 7112/13114 54.2  %
Total Votes 6796
SERGE DEDINA 4607 67.79%
VALERIE ACEVEZ 2142 31.52%

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 7112/13114 54.2  %
Total Votes 11368
PALOMA AGUIRRE 3345 29.42%
ED SPRIGGS 3009 26.47%
DANE  CROSBY 2147 18.89%
DARNISHA HUNTER 1779 15.65%
MO CAMACHO 1056 9.29%

CITY OF LA MESA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 18639
MARK ARAPOSTATHIS 17986 96.50%

CITY OF LA MESA CITY COUNCIL
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 36984
AKILAH WEBER 11149 30.15%
BILL BABER 8978 24.28%
GUY MCWHIRTER 8557 23.14%
DAVE MYERS 8214 22.21%

CITY OF LA MESA TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24320/35341 68.8  %
Total Votes 16830
ELDON "BUD" VOGT 16587 98.56%

CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 8587/14651 58.6  %
Total Votes 12622
JENNIFER L. MENDOZA 4241 33.60%
JERRY JONES 3269 25.90%
TERESA ROSIAK 2670 21.15%
KAMAAL MARTIN 2401 19.02%

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12776/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 11971
A SOTELO-SOLIS 5506 45.99%
D DELOSSANTOS YAMANE 3468 28.97%
R. MITCHEL BEAUCHAMP 1576 13.17%
DANIEL PEREZ 1383 11.55%

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 12776/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 19615
RON MORRISON 4966 25.32%
MONA ALVARADO-RIOS 4844 24.70%
JOSE RODRIGUEZ 4770 24.32%
CANDY MORALES 2843 14.49%
SHERRY GOGUE 1545 7.88%
JAMES KIM III 627 3.20%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 26
Precincts Reporting 26 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12937/19466 66.5  %
Total Votes 11415
ESTHER C. SANCHEZ 4137 36.24%
CHUCK LOWERY 3808 33.36%
SUSAN CUSTER 2340 20.50%
MICHAEL M. ODEGAARD 1094 9.58%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 16 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:14 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 29
Precincts Reporting 29 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 14798/22027 67.2  %
Total Votes 13043
CHRIS RODRIGUEZ 5610 43.01%
DANA CORSO 3449 26.44%
TERRY W. JOHNSON SR. 1941 14.88%
LARRY KORNIT 1248 9.57%
KRISTOPHER R. KAGAN 760 5.83%

CITY OF OCEANSIDE TREASURER
Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65312/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 51745
VICTOR ROY 28869 55.79%
RAFE E. TRICKEY JR. 22588 43.65%

CITY OF POWAY MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 22430/30171 74.3  %
Total Votes 20687
STEVE VAUS 12895 62.33%
BRIAN EDMONSTON 3929 18.99%
EMILY JOHNSON 3169 15.32%
YURI BOHLEN 634 3.06%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5362/7329 73.2  %
Total Votes 4653
DAVE GROSCH 2257 48.51%
JON RYAN 1181 25.38%
PETE NEILD 863 18.55%
JOHN CARSON 343 7.37%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 3 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5813/7836 74.2  %
Total Votes 4881
JOHN MULLIN 3140 64.33%
JOE CALABRESE 1723 35.30%

CITY OF POWAY CITY COUNCIL 
SHORT TERM Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 22430/30171 74.3  %
Total Votes 18554
CAYLIN FRANK 9338 50.33%
TORREY POWERS 6811 36.71%
TONY T. RUSSO 2331 12.56%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 89
Precincts Reporting 89 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 63886/90354 70.7  %
Total Votes 55955
JENNIFER CAMPBELL 32439 57.97%
LORIE ZAPF 23516 42.03%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 79
Precincts Reporting 79 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 39384/76541 51.5  %
Total Votes 34949
MONICA MONTGOMERY 20180 57.74%
MYRTLE COLE 14769 42.26%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 6 Total

Number of Precincts 79
Precincts Reporting 79 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 54391/81157 67.0  %
Total Votes 46527
CHRIS CATE 25022 53.78%
TOMMY HOUGH 21505 46.22%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 17 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:15 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 8 Total

Number of Precincts 80
Precincts Reporting 80 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33513/70729 47.4  %
Total Votes 29351
VIVIAN MORENO 14950 50.94%
ANTONIO MARTINEZ 14401 49.06%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 52
Precincts Reporting 52 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 31715/45584 69.6  %
Total Votes 28504
REBECCA JONES 14569 51.11%
CHRIS ORLANDO 12284 43.10%
BRADLEY ZINK 1595 5.60%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 7
Precincts Reporting 7 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4483/7491 59.8  %
Total Votes 3783
MARIA NUNEZ 1881 49.72%
CRAIG GARCIA 1431 37.83%
CLIFF IRELAND 465 12.29%

CITY OF SAN MARCOS CITY 
COUNCIL DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 18
Precincts Reporting 18 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 10658/13979 76.2  %
Total Votes 9192
RANDY WALTON 4754 51.72%
MIKE SANNELLA 2958 32.18%
ERIC FLODINE 1457 15.85%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 6004/8623 69.6  %
Total Votes 5554
ROB MCNELIS 3107 55.94%
E ANDRADE-HEYMSFIELD 2422 43.61%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5506/8238 66.8  %
Total Votes 4855
RONN HALL 3316 68.30%
RUDY REYES 1510 31.10%

CITY OF SANTEE CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 3 - SHORT TERM Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5886/8573 68.7  %
Total Votes 5252
LAURA KOVAL 3099 59.01%
ZACK GIANINO 1588 30.24%
LYNDA MARROKAL 555 10.57%

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH CITY 
COUNCIL Total

Number of Precincts 11
Precincts Reporting 11 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 7229/9004 80.3  %
Total Votes 11099
KRISTI BECKER 3886 35.01%
KELLY HARLESS 3628 32.69%
CRAIG NELSON 1826 16.45%
VALERI PAUL 879 7.92%
SHAWN  MCCLONDON 852 7.68%

CITY OF VISTA MAYOR
Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29329/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 27021
JUDY RITTER 13425 49.68%
JOE GREEN 10819 40.04%
DOMINIC D'AGOSTINI 2683 9.93%

CITY OF VISTA CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4656/8302 56.1  %
Total Votes 4131
CORINNA CONTRERAS 2088 50.54%
JOHN J. AGUILERA 2022 48.95%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 18 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:16 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

CITY OF VISTA CITY COUNCIL 
DISTRICT NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 20
Precincts Reporting 20 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8781/12566 69.9  %
Total Votes 7661
JOHN B. FRANKLIN 4015 52.41%
TAZHEEN NIZAM 3082 40.23%
JAMES STUCKRAD 548 7.15%

ALPINE COMMUNITY PLANNING 
AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 19
Precincts Reporting 19 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 8396/11701 71.8  %
Total Votes 26547
JAMES J. EASTERLING 3875 14.60%
GEORGE P BARNETT 3573 13.46%
ALBERT V. HAVEN 3321 12.51%
LOUIS RUSSO 3196 12.04%
JENIFER L. SWANSON 3189 12.01%
GLENDA L. ARCHER 2791 10.51%
JUSTIN M. JOHNSTON 2525 9.51%
RICHARD M SALDANO JR 2224 8.38%
MARY HARRIS 1732 6.52%

ALPINE FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 12
Precincts Reporting 12 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 7431/10247 72.5  %
Total Votes 12637
JIM EASTERLING 4409 34.89%
PATRICK D. PRICE 2520 19.94%
BARON BARRY WILLIS 2396 18.96%
MARTIN MARUGG 2060 16.30%
RICHARD M SALDANO JR 1208 9.56%

DEER SPRINGS FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 19
Precincts Reporting 19 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 6440/8595 74.9  %
Total Votes 10848
JEAN FRANK SLAUGHTER 3263 30.08%
BRIAN SHIELD HOLLEY 2666 24.58%
JAMES E. GORDON 2530 23.32%
ROBERT E. OSBY 2368 21.83%

FALLBROOK COMMUNITY 
PLANNING AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 35
Precincts Reporting 35 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 18288/25248 72.4  %
Total Votes 53835
JIM RUSSELL 9106 16.91%
MARK MERVICH 7053 13.10%
VICTORIA STOVER 6403 11.89%
KIM MURPHY 6211 11.54%
GUY R. HOWARD 6141 11.41%
EILEEN DELANEY 6112 11.35%
STEPHEN E BROWN 4524 8.40%
JERRY KALMAN 4294 7.98%
RICHARD J. BILLBURG 3805 7.07%

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 49
Precincts Reporting 49 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 21937/30233 72.6  %
Total Votes 30396
KATE SCHWARTZ 10836 35.65%
JENNIFER  JEFFRIES 7887 25.95%
HOWARD SALMON 7207 23.71%
ARMANDO J. TELLES 4369 14.37%

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 3
Precincts Reporting 3 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1689/2695 62.7  %
Total Votes 1191
KENNETH  ENDTER 720 60.45%
JOHN COULTER NEWMAN 467 39.21%

GROSSMONT HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 391
Precincts Reporting 391 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 186354/283306 65.8  %
Total Votes 210595
GLORIA A. CHADWICK 92171 43.77%
RANDY LENAC 75213 35.71%
ED MARTINEZ 42539 20.20%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 19 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:17 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

HELIX WATER DISTRICT DIV NO. 1 
  (Short Term) Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 17441/27983 62.3  %
Total Votes 13642
DAN MCMILLAN 6025 44.17%
TABITHA REMUND-BURKE 4109 30.12%
JAMES STIERINGER 3468 25.42%

JULIAN-CUYAMACA FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1945/2453 79.3  %
Total Votes 2449
MICHAEL MENGHINI 936 38.22%
EVELINA "EVA" HATCH 737 30.09%
PATRICIA PAT LANDIS 657 26.83%

LAKESIDE FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 42
Precincts Reporting 42 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 24878/37232 66.8  %
Total Votes 47362
TIM ROBLES 13081 27.62%
ROBERT "BOB" ROBESON 10476 22.12%
PETER A. LIEBIG 9011 19.03%
MIKE HAWORTH 8322 17.57%
RONALD RON KASPER 6365 13.44%

NORTH COUNTY FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 45
Precincts Reporting 45 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 21086/29111 72.4  %
Total Votes 22134
JOHN VAN DOORN 8779 39.66%
KENNETH E MUNSON 8060 36.41%
JOHN A DEL-ZIO 5241 23.68%

PALOMAR HEALTH
Total

Number of Precincts 360
Precincts Reporting 360 100.0  %
Vote For 4
Times Counted 199775/283288 70.5  %
Total Votes 445399
LINDA CAROL GREER 66911 15.02%
RICHARD C. ENGEL 65526 14.71%
LAURIE EDWARDS-TATE 61522 13.81%
JOHN CLARK 53887 12.10%
DALE BARDIN 53029 11.91%
HANS CHRISTIAN SISON 52470 11.78%
VANESSA GUTIERREZ 49110 11.03%
CHRISTOPHER K. LEE 32964 7.40%
CODY JAMES RYAN 9017 2.02%

PAUMA VALLEY COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 2
Precincts Reporting 2 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 345/445 77.5  %
Total Votes 660
SAMUEL R LOGAN 176 26.67%
BILL JACOBS 160 24.24%
CLARENCE W. WINN 157 23.79%
RICHARD HENRY NOLAN 151 22.88%

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1953/2705 72.2  %
Total Votes 1375
CARL  RINDFLEISCH 770 56.00%
BILL STEWART 598 43.49%

RAMONA MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT DIV NO. 2 Total

Number of Precincts 8
Precincts Reporting 8 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 3539/4774 74.1  %
Total Votes 2570
JAMES HICKLE 1408 54.79%
JAMES  ZENOVIC 1148 44.67%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 20 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:18 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

RANCHO SANTA FE FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT Total

Number of Precincts 54
Precincts Reporting 54 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 15390/20358 75.6  %
Total Votes 17187
JOHN C. TANNER 7756 45.13%
TUCKER  STINE 6580 38.28%
DOUGLAS S. DILL 2801 16.30%

SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF Total

Number of Precincts 90
Precincts Reporting 90 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 45059/70333 64.1  %
Total Votes 75668
THERESA MCKENNA 25332 33.48%
JIM EK 19682 26.01%
MICHAEL VACIO 19674 26.00%
WILLIAM A. KIEL II 10787 14.26%

SOUTH BAY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
DIV NO. 1 Total

Number of Precincts 9
Precincts Reporting 9 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 5704/11548 49.4  %
Total Votes 4934
STEVE CASTANEDA 3813 77.28%
PAUL CRAWFORD 1098 22.25%

SOUTH BAY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
DIV NO. 4 Total

Number of Precincts 13
Precincts Reporting 13 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 7748/14250 54.4  %
Total Votes 6613
HECTOR M. MARTINEZ 4301 65.04%
JERRY  THOMAS 1164 17.60%
M. KEVIN O'NEILL 1129 17.07%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 2
Total

Number of Precincts 39
Precincts Reporting 39 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 18849/28625 65.8  %
Total Votes 16051
ROCKY J. CHÁVEZ 5766 35.92%
JIM S. BURLEW 5195 32.37%
LAURA MITCHELL 5026 31.31%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 4
Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12208/21069 57.9  %
Total Votes 9502
GEORGE W. COULTER 5728 60.28%
ERUBEY LOPEZ 3728 39.23%

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DIV NO. 6
Total

Number of Precincts 46
Precincts Reporting 46 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25776/33226 77.6  %
Total Votes 18538
TRACY M. YOUNGER 9484 51.16%
JIM DAGOSTINO 8987 48.48%

VALLE DE ORO COMMUNITY 
PLANNING AREA GROUP Total

Number of Precincts 38
Precincts Reporting 38 100.0  %
Vote For 7
Times Counted 19187/26585 72.2  %
Total Votes 51369
DAVID R. STEELE 7077 13.78%
LORI M. MYERS 6678 13.00%
W. TINSLEY BECKER 5950 11.58%
CATHERINE G. GERHART 5758 11.21%
ALYSSA BURLEY 5695 11.09%
KYLE HERMANN 5662 11.02%
MARK SCHUPPERT 5478 10.66%
CHARLES R. KOSSMAN 5319 10.35%
KOUWTHAR  COOKIE 3541 6.89%

VALLEY CENTER PARKS AND 
RECREATION Total

Number of Precincts 14
Precincts Reporting 14 100.0  %
Vote For 3
Times Counted 8619/11876 72.6  %
Total Votes 13637
SHANNON LAIRD 3628 26.60%
KATHY MACKENZIE 3616 26.52%
BILL TROK 3193 23.41%
JON VICK 3146 23.07%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 21 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:19 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

WHISPERING PALMS COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 2
Times Counted 1511/1867 80.9  %
Total Votes 1916
WILLIAM W. HAYNOR 649 33.87%
AL PANTON 533 27.82%
SHANNON BISZANTZ 387 20.20%
VIVIAN LEE FORD 342 17.85%

PROP 1  AUTHORIZES BONDS TO 
FUND HOUSING PGMS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1116803
YES 590056 52.83%
NO 526747 47.17%

PROP 2  AUTHORIZES BONDS TO 
FUND EXIST. HOUSING PGM Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1116646
YES 699283 62.62%
NO 417363 37.38%

PROP 3  AUTHORIZES BONDS FUND
PROJECTS WTR Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1078798
NO 549979 50.98%
YES 528819 49.02%

PROP 4  AUTHORIZES BONDS 
FUNDING CONST. HOSP. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1106435
YES 667874 60.36%
NO 438561 39.64%

PROP 5  CHANGES REQ. CERTAIN 
PROPERTY OWNERS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1097039
NO 613573 55.93%
YES 483466 44.07%

PROP 6  ELIMINATES ROAD 
REPAIR/TRANS. FUNDING Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1136393
YES 578961 50.95%
NO 557432 49.05%

PROP 7  DAYLIGHT SAVING TIME
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1110437
YES 755276 68.02%
NO 355161 31.98%

PROP 8  REGULATES KIDNEY 
DIALYSIS CLINICS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1113740
NO 665096 59.72%
YES 448644 40.28%

PROP 10  ENACT RENT CONTROL
Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1120991
NO 688240 61.40%
YES 432751 38.60%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 22 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:20 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

PROP 11  PRIVATE-SECTOR EMER. 
AMBULANCE Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1110723
YES 693218 62.41%
NO 417505 37.59%

PROP 12  ESTABLISHES NEW 
STANDARDS FARM ANIMALS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1105119
YES 679513 61.49%
NO 425606 38.51%

MEASURE A- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
    CH. AMD. "CLEAN-UP" Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1021086
YES 753899 73.83%
NO 267187 26.17%

MEASURE B- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
     CH. AMD. REP. UNINC. AREAS Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 991677
YES 592706 59.77%
NO 398971 40.23%

MEASURE C- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
CH. AMD. GOOD GOVT. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1007910
YES 704163 69.86%
NO 303747 30.14%

MEASURE D- SAN DIEGO COUNTY  
CH. AMD. REQ. RUN-OFF ELECTS. Total

Number of Precincts 2136
Precincts Reporting 2136 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1172517/1767300 66.3  %
Total Votes 1010425
YES 641536 63.49%
NO 368889 36.51%

MEASURE E- CITY OF SAN DIEGO    
SOCCER CITY Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 466281
NO 314427 67.43%
YES 151854 32.57%

MEASURE G- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
 SDSU WEST Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 464229
YES 252839 54.46%
NO 211390 45.54%

MEASURE J- CITY OF SAN DIEGO    
CH. AMD. DISC. BUSINESS Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 431932
YES 368481 85.31%
NO 63451 14.69%

MEASURE K- CITY OF SAN DIEGO  
CH. AMD. LIMIT 2-FOUR YR TRMS Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 439651
YES 382684 87.04%
NO 56967 12.96%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 23 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:21 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE L- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
CH. AMD. ETHICS-COMP. Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 434179
YES 340828 78.50%
NO 93351 21.50%

MEASURE M- CITY OF SAN DIEGO  
 CH. AMD. APPT. AUDIT COM Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 415208
YES 248018 59.73%
NO 167190 40.27%

MEASURE N- CITY OF SAN DIEGO   
  REINSTATE DISABILITY Total

Number of Precincts 813
Precincts Reporting 813 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 497613/761959 65.3  %
Total Votes 438481
YES 343070 78.24%
NO 95411 21.76%

MEASURE Q- CITY OF CHULA 
VISTA  CANNABIS BUS. TAX Total

Number of Precincts 122
Precincts Reporting 122 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 80462/140099 57.4  %
Total Votes 75572
YES 48607 64.32%
NO 26965 35.68%

MEASURE P- CITY OF DEL MAR     
CH. AMD. CITY'S GENERAL PLAN Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2350
YES 1385 58.94%
NO 965 41.06%

MEASURE R- CITY OF DEL MAR       
  SHORELINE PROT. AREA Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2437
NO 1988 81.58%
YES 449 18.42%

MEASURE T- CITY OF DEL MAR   
PROPOSING ORD. 939 Total

Number of Precincts 6
Precincts Reporting 6 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 2715/3273 83.0  %
Total Votes 2374
YES 1898 79.95%
NO 476 20.05%

MEASURE U- CITY OF ENCINITAS   
HOUSING PLAN UPDATE 2018 Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 33650/42394 79.4  %
Total Votes 30002
NO 15882 52.94%
YES 14120 47.06%

MEASURE V- CITY OF LA MESA     
CITY TAX CANNABIS Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 24284/35341 68.7  %
Total Votes 21651
YES 15862 73.26%
NO 5789 26.74%

MEASURE W- CITY OF NATIONAL 
CITY   RENT CONTROL Total

Number of Precincts 25
Precincts Reporting 25 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 12756/24643 51.8  %
Total Votes 12075
NO 6115 50.64%
YES 5960 49.36%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 24 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:22 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE X- CITY OF OCEANSIDE  
ONE-HALF CENT SALES TAX Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65231/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 61299
YES 34133 55.68%
NO 27166 44.32%

MEASURE Y- CITY OF OCEANSIDE  
AMEND. LAND USE ELEMENT Total

Number of Precincts 113
Precincts Reporting 113 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 65231/93911 69.5  %
Total Votes 60957
NO 32228 52.87%
YES 28729 47.13%

MEASURE Z- CITY OF VISTA    
CITIZEN'S MED. CANNABIS Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 27689
YES 14900 53.81%
NO 12789 46.19%

MEASURE AA- CITY OF VISTA    
CANNABIS BUS. TAX Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 26997
YES 14210 52.64%
NO 12787 47.36%

MEASURE BB- CITY OF VISTA      
CANNABIS BUS. ORD. Total

Number of Precincts 58
Precincts Reporting 58 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 29306/45253 64.8  %
Total Votes 26776
NO 14346 53.58%
YES 12430 46.42%

MEASURE CC- SOUTHWESTERN CC
DIST   - TERM LIMITS Total

Number of Precincts 257
Precincts Reporting 257 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 142469/255739 55.7  %
Total Votes 131635
YES 116125 88.22%
NO 15510 11.78%

MEASURE DD- SWEETWATER UN 
HS DIST   $403M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 248
Precincts Reporting 248 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 134437/244968 54.9  %
Total Votes 125113
YES 86510 69.15%
NO 38603 30.85%

MEASURE EE- BONSALL UN SCHL   
$38M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 33
Precincts Reporting 33 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8400/11208 74.9  %
Total Votes 7812
NO 4491 57.49%
YES 3321 42.51%

MEASURE GG- BORREGO SPGS UN 
SCHL $8.6M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1325/1754 75.5  %
Total Votes 1259
YES 835 66.32%
NO 424 33.68%

MEASURE HH- CARLSBAD UN 
SCHL   $265M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 57
Precincts Reporting 57 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 37496/48721 77.0  %
Total Votes 34260
YES 21416 62.51%
NO 12844 37.49%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 25 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:23 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE JJ- MTN EMPIRE UN 
SCHL   $15M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 17
Precincts Reporting 17 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4553/7079 64.3  %
Total Votes 4210
YES 2332 55.39%
NO 1878 44.61%

MEASURE H- SD UN SCHL DIST    
TERM LIMITS Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383466/585998 65.4  %
Total Votes 333005
YES 260232 78.15%
NO 72773 21.85%

MEASURE YY- SD UN SCHL DIST     
$3.5B BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 612
Precincts Reporting 612 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 383466/585998 65.4  %
Total Votes 344573
YES 224262 65.08%
NO 120311 34.92%

MEASURE LL- VISTA UN SCHL     
$247M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 108
Precincts Reporting 108 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 54990/80164 68.6  %
Total Votes 50864
YES 32661 64.21%
NO 18203 35.79%

MEASURE MM- DEL MAR UN SCHL 
$186M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 31
Precincts Reporting 31 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 21294/28373 75.1  %
Total Votes 19252
YES 11771 61.14%
NO 7481 38.86%

MEASURE NN- SOUTH BAY UN 
SCHL   $18M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 37
Precincts Reporting 37 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 19927/39434 50.5  %
Total Votes 18274
YES 12464 68.21%
NO 5810 31.79%

MEASURE VV- CHULA VISTA ELEM
$150M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 162
Precincts Reporting 162 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 94036/163480 57.5  %
Total Votes 87434
YES 59235 67.75%
NO 28199 32.25%

MEASURE S- SANTEE SCHL DIST   
$15.37M BONDS (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 51
Precincts Reporting 51 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 25058/36240 69.1  %
Total Votes 22713
YES 13778 60.66%
NO 8935 39.34%

MEASURE O- OTAY MESA EIFD    
BOND ISSUANCE (REQ 55%) Total

Number of Precincts 10
Precincts Reporting 10 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 4552/8930 51.0  %
Total Votes 4206
YES 3164 75.23%
NO 1042 24.77%

MEASURE PP- BORREGO SPR FIRE 
SPECIAL PARCEL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 2
Precincts Reporting 2 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1235/1602 77.1  %
Total Votes 1183
YES 668 56.47%
NO 515 43.53%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 26 of 28



County of San Diego
Gubernatorial General Election

November 6, 2018
Official Results - (San Diego County Portion Only)

Date:12/06/18
Time:12:43:54
Page:24 of 24

Registered Voters 1767300 Num. Report Precinct 2136 - Num. Reporting 2136    100.00%

MEASURE QQ- JULIAN-CUY FIRE 
PROT DIST   ANNUAL BENEFIT FEE Total

Number of Precincts 4
Precincts Reporting 4 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 1943/2453 79.2  %
Total Votes 1812
NO 976 53.86%
YES 836 46.14%

MEASURE RR- RINCON RANCH CSD
 SPECIAL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 1
Precincts Reporting 1 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 81/115 70.4  %
Total Votes 76
YES 46 60.53%
NO 30 39.47%

MEASURE SS- VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE SPECIAL TAX (REQ 2/3) Total

Number of Precincts 15
Precincts Reporting 15 100.0  %
Vote For 1
Times Counted 8247/11379 72.5  %
Total Votes 7767
YES 4512 58.09%
NO 3255 41.91%

Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 27 of 28



Resolution No. 2018-187 

Exhibit  "A" 

Page 28 of 28


	Consent Calendar

	1. Certification of November 2018 Municipal Election Results




